
   
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 
 
 

 

24 September 2019 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) on 
Wednesday, 2nd October, 2019 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Paul Goodale 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Colin Woodcock 
 Councillors Alistair Arundell, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, 

Anne Dorrian, Viven Edge, Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, 
Neill Hastie, Brian Rush, Yvonne Stevens and Stephen Woodliffe 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 21st August 2019. 
 

Public Document Pack



C   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 

 To report progress on outstanding actions from the minutes of the last meeting, for 
information only. 
 

D   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

E   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 27th September 2019. 
 

F   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME  
 

 To allow members of the public to address the Committee. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019 (Pages 
5 - 10) 
 

 (A report by Tim Sampson, Accountancy Manager - Revenues & Systems) 
 

2   BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

 (A report by Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC 
Grant Administrator)  
 

3   BTAC ASSETS- TOUR OF OPEN SPACES (Pages 15 - 44) 
 

 (A report presented by Phil Perry, Head of Place and Space)  
 

4   REVIEW OF 2019/20 EVENTS AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2020/21 EVENTS 
PROGRAMME (Pages 45 - 66) 
 

 (A report by Phil Perry, Head of Place and Space)  
 

5   UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES ACTIVITY (Pages 67 - 76) 
 

 (A report presented by Phil Perry, Head of Place and Space)  
 

6   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 77 - 78) 
 

 (The Committee’s work programme for the current year for discussion and/or 
updating.) 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227  email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

21 August 2019 

Present: Councillor Paul Goodale (Chairman),  (Vice-Chairman), Councillors 
Alistair Arundell, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Viven Edge, Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, 
Brian Rush, Yvonne Stevens and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Officers –  
Head of Place and Space and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
13   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian and Colin 
Woodcock. 
 
14   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Committee’s last meeting, held on 12th June 2019, were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
15   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
Question from Mr Paul Palmer, a member of the public, submitted in accordance with 
the Council’s constitution: 
 
“Are the gates of the central park left open due to cost cutting at the council or just that 
they don’t care about the residents that live around the park that have to endure the 
constant Anti social behaviour? “ 
 
Answer to the public question by Councillor Paul Goodale: 
 
"Thank you very much for your question Mr Palmer. 
 
Following a request by Members of this Committee at their meeting in January this year, 
a report was presented to the February Committee meeting to specifically consider 
security of Central Park and if there was any evidence to suggest that the decision to 
leave the park open at all times had resulted in an adverse impact on crime and anti-
social behaviour. Evidence provided by the Police to inform the report identified that 
crime and antisocial behaviour reports were lower in 2017 and in 2018, than when the 
park had been locked at night. The Police also reported that the type and number of 
complaints concerning Central Park did not provide any concern to Lincolnshire Police.  
 
Whilst the decision to keep the park open and accessible to the public 24 hours a day 
has delivered financial savings, there were operational reasons that necessitated the 
decision, such as the difficulties encountered when ushering the public from the park 
prior to locking up on light summer evenings. The boundary fences around the park also 
provide little deterrence to any individual steadfastly determined to commit crime or anti-
social behaviour, hence BTAC determined to divert resources from other parks in the 
Borough to the enhancement of the CCTV capability in Central Park. I am pleased to 
report that an order has been placed for this work and solicitors instructed.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
21 August 2019 
 

I would also like to take this opportunity to share my appreciation for the work 
undertaken by Council staff who maintain the Central Park facilities each and every day, 
work that Committee Members will understand would need to be done, whether the park 
remained open 24 hours a day or was locked at night." 
 
Invited to ask a supplementary question, Mr Palmer asked whether the enhancement of 
the CCTV system meant there would be more cameras and extra lighting, because 
when reporting incidents through the 101 service, people could not give a description of 
the people involved because there was insufficient lighting. 
 
In response, the Head of Place and Space explained that the enhancement would not 
mean extra cameras and lighting; there would be an upgrade of the system, which 
would take place in the next month or so, adding that lighting was also known to attract 
people into parks.  
 
16   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME 

 
Mr Abbott addressed the meeting about the gates of Central Park being left unlocked 
and suggested that there be a trial period, perhaps over two months, using volunteers to 
lock and unlock the gates.  He volunteered to do so one day a week and he was sure 
that other volunteers would easily be found to support this trial, which would allow BTAC 
to assess whether this made a difference.   
 
17   BTAC 2018/19 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE 

 
The Committee received the regular update report on the BTAC financial position, which 
set out the budget and projected outturn (full-year spend) for the 2018/19 year, and the 
project BTAC reserve at the year-end. The budget and project outturn position were 
detailed in Appendix 1.   
 
Members commented that the change of the report’s format made it easier to 
understand. 
 

RESOLVED: That the projected financial position for the year and the reserve 
amounts at the year-end be noted. 

 
18   UPDATE ON WORK OF BTAC OPERATIVES - STANDING ITEM 

 
The Head of Place and Space presented the regular update on the work of the BTAC 
Operatives, which set out the details of work undertaken during May to July 2019 with 
‘before and after’ photographs to illustrate particular jobs. 
 
Members commended the work of the operatives and the significant impact of their work 
in improving the appearance of the town centre.   
 
In response to questions, the Head of Place and Space explained that the operatives’ 
equipment and vehicles were stored at the Council’s depot and there had been some 
relocation recently.  The operatives helped set up and clear away after events in line 
with BTAC’s original request that they be involved in all  operations; it would be very 
difficult to hold some events without their help. 

Page 2



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
21 August 2019 

 

Action: PP 
Examine the software that details the locations on the ‘before and after’ photographs. 

 
The Head of Place and Space explained that the CCTV system in Central Park was 
quite old and due to be upgraded in the next few weeks. The new cameras would have 
infra-red capability which would mean they would perform better in lower light as well as 
improving images. There were three cameras coving Central Park and the 
improvements should increase the hours covered. The upgrade would be complete in 
the whole of the BTAC area in two to three months. 
 

Action: PP  
1. Report back to the Committee on the light levels and whether they will identify faces 

at night, and whether they will be multi-head cameras. 
2. Report back on requirements in terms of insurance and training etc. if a volunteer 

group was to be formed to lock the gates of Central Park. 

 
19   WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM 

 
Members considered the work programme and put forward the following items: 
 
2nd October 

 Invite Boston’s Policing Inspector to attend, though Members were reminded that 
questions should be submitted in advance of the meeting. 

 Report back from the Committee’s Tour of Assets. 
 
27th November 

 An update on alternative sites for the speed indicating device (SID) 

 (Possibly January) Report on an upgrade of Fenside. 
 
The following matters would be investigated and reported back to Members: 

 Where to direct requests for street lights to remain switched on in particularly 
dangerous areas and, if it should be the Committee to deal with these, whether it 
should do so in the same way as parish councils.   

 Funding for CCTV cameras for Fenside to address public fears since the housing 
association previously funding them took the decision to switch them off.  This was to 
form part of a review of CCTV provision for the whole borough that would be 
reported to the relevant Scrutiny Committee and BTAC would wait for the outcome of 
that review. 

 Costing of the provision of jet-washing streets in line with many other authorities. 
 
In addition: 

 Councillor Brian Rush volunteered to join Councillors Martin Griggs and Alan Bell on 
the Open Spaces Working Group. 

 Details of crimes outlined by two Members had been forwarded to Lincolnshire 
Police. 

 It was noted that there would be an update on the Night-Time Economy Task and 
Finish Group at the next meeting of the Environment and Performance Committee, to 
be held on 24th September.   

 
The Meeting ended at 7.35 pm 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

DATE: 02 OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT: BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE 
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR: ACCOUNTANCY MANAGER  - REVENUE & 
SYSTEMS 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report provides an update to members on the BTAC financial position, 
showing the budget and projected outturn (full-year spend) for the 2019/20 
year, and the projected BTAC reserve at the year-end 31 March 2020. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That BTAC members note the financial position for the year and the 
forecasted reserve amounts at the year-end. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
This report shows the BTAC projected outturn for the 2019/20 year, both in 
terms of revenue expenditure for the year and the reserve sums held.  It helps 
inform members to enable them to ensure probity and to make decisions on 
future spending within the BTAC area.  
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 
 
1 2019/20 PROJECTED FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
1.1 Appendix 1 provides the regular monthly summary of the approved 

2019/20 BTAC budget.  
 

 Once again a number of assumptions are required to assess the year 
end position – these include:- 

 

 The outturn spending for already agreed spending and income is 
broadly in line with the budget. 

 The remaining unallocated 2019/20 sum is approved and spent this 
year.  

 
 
1.2 Appendix 1 shows the budget and projected outturn position. 
 
           At the 5 months year to date, the projection for the full year is showing 

an overspend of (£4,074). This is primarily due to: 
 
           Open Spaces and Play Areas – (£3,735) overspend due to Staff costs. 
           Events – (£146) overspend – Festival lighting. 
           Public Conveniences – (£188) overspend being Agency Staff costs 

(£334) adv. and Business Rates £146 fav. 
 
1.3     Appendix 1 shows the Funds Available for Unallocated Projects as at 

31 August 2019 to be £82,452. 
     
         
2 RESERVES 
 
2.1 The opening balance at 1 April 2019 held within BTAC reserves was 

£269,419 (comprising £70,000 as the minimum to be held to allow for 
contingencies - as approved in the budget setting report - plus 
£199,419 for projects as listed in the Appendix). The forecasted closing 
balance on BTAC’s reserve monies is £117,749 at 31 March 2020. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Entire report and appendices. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The use of executive powers derives from the Local Government Act 2000. 
 

 

Page 6



 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
None 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Summary of BTAC budget and projected outturn position for 
2019/20, and reserve position as at 31 March 2020.   
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government 
Act 1972 were used in the production of this report. 
 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
From July 2016, BTAC members have requested that a financial update 
report be brought to each meeting. 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

REVENUE BUDGET
£ £ £

OPEN SPACES AND PLAY AREAS 44,994 114,760 118,495

ALLOTMENTS RETAINED SUPPORT (1,121) 1,000 1,000

ADMINISTRATION 13,289 44,060 44,060

CENTRAL PARK 49,202 123,800 123,800

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES 55,739 140,570 140,758

EVENTS 78,595 126,670 126,816

TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES 35,195 80,740 80,744

OTHER PROJECTS - 48,703 48,703

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 275,894 680,303 684,377

Less income from BTAC Council Tax levy (283,460) (680,303) (680,303)

Deficit / (Surplus) for the year (7,566) - 4,074

BTAC RESERVE
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2019 269,419 269,419 -

Projected Deficit / (Surplus) for the year (as above) (7,566) - 4,074

Unallocated reserves B/F:- 91,823 -

Allocated spend from Reserves B/F:-
Open Spaces - Trim trail and Gym Equipment 40,000 40,000 40,000
Open Spaces - Central Park MUGA (expected in 19.20) - 36,338 36,338
Open Spaces naturalised planting - 6,179 6,179
Central Park CCTV  -  committed but remaining unspent 10,200 10,200
Public Conveniences Sub Group  - balance from 18.19 - 12,421 12,421
BTAC operatives equipment purchase - balance from 18.19 - 2,458 2,458
Open Spaces -  Play area improvements "Wish List" 23,105 - 40,000

Sub-total: BTAC reserves 63,105 199,419 147,596

Net Movement in Reserves (55,539) (199,419) (151,670)

Estimated balance carry forward as at 31 March 2020 213,880 70,000 117,749

  Total Funds Available for Unallocated Projects at 31 August 2019: £
  Unallocated Total in Annual Budget 2019/20 48,703
  Reserve B/F 01/04/19 269,419
  Less S151 Officer recommended Minimum Reserve (70,000)
  Less Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 18/19 (107,596)
  Less Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 19/20 (40,000)
 * Less Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 19/20 (14,000)
  Sub-Total Available Funds at 01/04/19 86,526

  Less Forecasted Deficit 2019-20 (4,074)

  Total Funds Available 82,452

* The (£14,000) Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 19/20 - is the £14,000 BTAC contribution to the Woodville Road Play Area 'Pirate Ship.'

BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE -  2019/20 projected financial position

 YTD Actual
Expenditure
to 31.08.19

 Annual
Budget
2019/20

 Forecast   12
months
Outturn
2019/20

The recommendation to date from the Section 151 Officer is that the minimum reserve value to ensure that unforeseen budget variances can be
accommodated in-year is £70,000. This is reviewed annually as part of the budget setting process.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE: WEDNESDAY 02ND OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT: BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME 

REPORT AUTHOR: MADDY EYRE, LOCAL COMMUNITIES 
DEVELOPMENT OFFICER AND BTAC GRANT 
ADMINISTRATOR 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
In accordance with the Committee’s Small Grant Scheme, this report presents 
the comments made by the Small Grants Working Group in respect of 
applications received for the current round. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee endorse the recommendations made by the Working 
Group in respect of eligible applications. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Committee’s policy is to consider each eligible application in light of the 
recommendations made by the Small Grant Working Group.   
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
NA 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



1. REPORT 
 
1.1  8 applications were received in Round 1 of the Boston Town Area 

Committee Small Grant Scheme; of the 8, 7 were eligible.  Details of 
applicants are set out in Table 1 below.  Working Group 
recommendations to be circulated at full committee. 

 
TABLE 1 
 

Applicant Project Amount 
requested 

Willoughby Road 
Allotments 

Installation of an electric supply at the allotments £934.92  

1st Boston 
Scouts 

Purchase camping equipment £1,000 

Singing For Fun  Purchase small percussion instruments, music 
stands, branded scarves and ties, and contribute 
towards volunteer expenses and travel to 
performance venues. 

£1,000 

Forbes Road 
Bowling Club 

Repairing the fence at the Bowling Club site £1,000 

East Lincolnshire 
Downs 
Syndrome 
Family Support 
Group 

Assist with one year’s rent at St Christopher’s 
Church 

£620.00 

Blackfriars Arts 
Centre Ltd 

Contribute towards the cost of equipping a 
classroom at Shodfriars Hall to conduct guided tours 
from trained guides to increase awareness of their 
plans for developing the building into a community 
and heritage centre 

£1,000 

Centenary 
Methodist 
Chapel 

Contribute to the cost of planned programme of 
refurbishment work within the building 

£1,000 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The value of each grant sought is set out in Table 1.  The Committee’s current 
Small Grant financial position is set out on the finance pro-forma that 
accompanies this report.  
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
This work relates directly to the Local Government Act 2000 and to the Duty 
of Well-being placed upon the Council to promote and improve the well-being 
of the District.  
 

Page 12



 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Priorities supported will promote fairness and inclusion while supporting 
Boston Town Area Committee’s commitment to equal opportunities for all, 
including those protected characteristics identified within the Equalities Act 
2010 
 
There are no equalities implications within this report.  All equalities 
implications will be managed alongside each individual applicant through the 
monitoring process of project delivery. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Applications have been reviewed by the Small Grant Working Group with their 
comments set out within Table 2 to be circulated at full committee. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
None 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Grant Applications Application summaries are available to 
BTAC Members on request from the Small 
Grant Scheme Administrator. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Name of body Date 
 

BTAC Small Grants Scheme Working 
Group 

03rd September 2019 

 

Page 13



 
FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  
 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     

REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 

REPORT DATE: Wednesday 02nd October 2019 

 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
Round 1 
recommended 
awards 

 
 

£5,154.92 

    

      
      

Total Revenue 
Cost 

5,154.92     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: 
02.10.19 

Total capital cost 
 

£0    

Revenue cost 
 

£5,154.92  Enter Council or 
Cabinet here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
The committee has budgeted funds of £9000 available for the 2019.20 small grant 
applications.  
Following the recommendations of the working group the remaining funds would be 
£3,845.08 for rounds 2 and 3.  
 
 
Risk 
 
None 
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months 

from FP date 
If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 
If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 

be reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE  

DATE: 02ND OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

BTAC ASSETS – TOUR OF OPEN SPACES 

 

HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS 

EXEMPT REPORT: No 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
Following a tour of BTAC public open spaces on 21 August 2019, members 
requested an update on matters arising during the tour in order to progress 
improvements and for consideration to be made for future developments. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That this committee: 
 

i) Note the update 
ii) Refer any future improvements identified to the BTAC working group for 

Open Spaces to investigate and report back options to a future meeting of 
BTAC meeting 
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To provide information to members in order that informed decisions can be made in 
respect to open spaces and play facilities. 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 

 

  

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



 

REPORT:  

 
1.0  INTRODUCTION: 
 
1.1 Members attended a tour of BTAC open spaces and play facilities on 21 

August 2019. The tour reviewed the improvements carried since the last tour 
in June 2018 and identified potential future improvements. 

 
1.2 The following areas were visited; Central Park, Broadfield Lane; Woodville 

Road; Garfits Lane; St John’s Park; Burgess Pit and Shelton’s Field. 
 
1.3 Details of specific discussions held during the tour is included in Appendix A. 
 

 
2.0 DEVELOPMENTS IN CENTRAL PARK 
 
2.1 The former bowls pavilion will be removed to facilitate the Multi Use Games 

Area and skate park. Building control consent has been obtained and planning 
permission has been applied for. Officers are awaiting a Decision Notice by 
Planning before works can commence. Members noted recent vandalism to 
the buildings and due to health and safety concerns, the buildings will be 
removed as soon as practicable and it is not recommended that the buildings 
be sold for dismantling. The demolition work will be carried out the grounds 
maintenance team and within existing budgets. 

 
2.2 CCTV. Phase I of the CCTV project completed on 02 September, installing 

three new infrared CCTV cameras in Central Park. Phase II of the project is 
due by the end of 2019/20 which will install a 4-way infrared static camera 
system at Park Gate. Appendix B shows images, which compare the quality of 
cameras before and after replacement. The new cameras provide the Council 
with enhanced capability to detect crime and antisocial behaviour in the park. 
Members receive information about CCTV performance as part of the 
quarterly performance report. 

 
2.3 Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) and Skate Park. The tender for the 

procurement of a MUGA is being prepared following consultation with the 
community. Funding for the MUGA and skate park is as follows; i) £37,000 
BTAC; ii) £269,000 Community Migration Fund total £306,000. A funding 
application has been submitted to the Co-Op for £35,000 and officers are 
further investigating funding opportunities from Sport England. A decision on 
the MUGA and skate park will be made by the BTAC Sub Group after 
considering all consultation and securing the maximum amount of funding.  
 

2.4 Community Garden. The creation of a new landscaping scheme designed to 
celebrate Boston’s maritime heritage is being commissioned from a local artist 
and Transported Arts. This new scheme will replace the existing community 
garden will support the Buoy project. Funding secured for this scheme is as 
follows; £6,000 previously allocated funds by BTAC for natural enhancements 
to open spaces and £10,750 grant from the Ministry of Housing & 

Page 16



 

Communities & Local Government. In addition, Transported Arts are seeking 
to develop a funding application for up to £10,000 to support this project. 

 
 
3.0 OTHER MATTERS 
 
3.1 Members asked if improvement could be made in the cleansing regime for the 

public conveniences. Public conveniences in the town centre are currently 
cleaned throughout the day using a mobile team, visiting each site in turn. A 
service review to be implemented in October 2019 is expected to have a 
positive impact on the standard of cleanliness with more direct inspection and 
supervision.   

 
3.2 A trial to keep public conveniences open 24 hours each day began on 2nd 

September; unfortunately, this has resulted in vandalism, attempted arson, 
rough sleeping and evidence of drug activity overnight. This impact of the 
extended opening will be monitored daily. 

 

3.3 Members noted a quantity of litter on the field at St Johns recreation and 
commented on this being unacceptable. Currently litter is collected each 
Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday by two grounds maintenance 
operatives using litter pickers, sacks and a van. Each visit generates two to 
three black sacks of litter. Additional visits are carried out by one street 
cleansing operative each Monday, Wednesday and Friday. This operative 
uses a van, litter picker, sacks, empties the litterbins, and collects any 
discarded litter.  

 
3.4 Increasing litter collection resources would require extra resources and 

funding. As an alternative, Officers will initially trial a period of enforcement 
action taking proportionate action where offences are observed. 

 
3.5 Members are asked to note the consultation responses in Appendix C 

including a ‘wish list’ of further improvements requested by the consultees. 
 
3.6 Members noted the play areas visited during the tour have received significant 

investment by BTAC and other funding partners in recent years. The play 
areas are high quality and offer a wide range of facilities for users. Members 
may want to consider prioritising future funding into sites where they receive 
maximum benefit to the community, such as Central Park, or to divert 
investment plans into other priorities such as community events. 

 
3.7 Any proposed improvements identified by this report should be considered by 

the BTAC open spaces working group to investigate and report options to a 
future meeting of BTAC meeting. 

 
3.8 Any future improvements agreed by BTAC will be subject to contract 

procurement rules and any expenditure over £10,000 will be subject to 
Cabinet approval. Once approval is granted, works will be issued to a relevant 
service provider so they can be delivered as soon as practicable. 

 

Page 17



 

4.0 Conclusion 
 
4.1 Members were pleased with the progress of improvements already carried out 

on BTAC open spaces and felt these had made a significant contribution to 
improving the quality of those spaces provided in the town and that the plans 
discussed for further development will encourage greater more positive use of 
public open spaces. 

 
4.2 It is anticipated that a future report will be submitted to BTAC by the sub group 

to provide cost details in relation to those improvements identified for 2019/20.  
 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are outlined in 2.3, 2.4 and 3.8 of this report. 
 

 
 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council is required to meet requirements of the EU Procurement Directive and its 
own Contract Procurement and Procedure Rules - Part 4 (H) of the Constitution. 
 
Local Council Powers and Duties to provide public space include; Open Spaces Act 
1906; Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; Public Health Act 
1906; Local Government Act 1972  
 
The Council is required to comply with the Public Sector Equality Duty. A full equality 
impact analysis will be undertaken at the appropriate time to ensure new equipment 
will consider the needs of all individuals. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation on this proposal has taken place with the Chairman of BTAC. 
 
  

Page 18



 

 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A BTAC tour of open spaces – details of matters 
discussed and identified during the tour. 

APPENDIX B CCTV images 

APPENDIX C Open Space Consultation 2019 
 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report. 
 
 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
None 
 

 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BTAC TOUR  

Play Areas and Open 

Green Spaces 

21/08/19 

 
Report by Frances Taylor 

Play and Physical Activity Officer 

Boston Borough Council 

19/08/2019 

Updated with BTAC Members comments 29/08/2019 

  

Page 21



Central Park 

 

Development of Landscaped Area, Skate Park and Multi Use Games 

Area Central Park. 

Consultation has already taken place with Transported Art, Carrie 

Reichards, Jenny Cairns, Haven High Academy, Community Groups, 

Users of Central Park and St Johns Skate Park, Maverick Industries 

and Freestyle. 

The Community Garden will become a landscaped area designed to 

tell the story of “The History of Boston” to include a Buoy. 

The bowling green will be developed as a Skate Park 

The Tennis Courts will be developed into a Multi-use Games Area 

including a concrete table tennis table. 

Consultation is ongoing with those already involved and residents at 

open evenings to be held over the next few months.  

Procurement Team are awaiting the final spec decisions before 

preparing the tender. 

Funding is secured as follows: 

£37,000 towards the MUGA – agreed BTAC 

£269,000 – Community Migration Fund 

£11,000 towards Landscaping – Ministry of Housing 

 

Funded still to be sought - £20,000 towards Landscaping. – BTAC to consider 

£10,000 and Transported seeking £10,000. 

 Further funding towards Skate Park would allow a bigger and better area – 

Fran applying for £35,000 grant from Co-op and looking into grant funding 

from Sport England. This will depend on if application would fit within project 

timescale. 

Page 22



Comments from BTAC Members: 

Councillor Stevens: 

Replace plastic within the windows of bird aviary 

Bin’s need washing 

Art Deco area needs rubbish picking from it 

Weeds around the outside of the community garden need removing 

Flower Beds around the pavilions need weeding 

Bin near community garden needs repairing 

Could the seat frames near pavilions be made back into seats? 

Land area near electric box near Tawney Street gate – Can we 

landscape it? 

Councillor Rush: 

Could we consider selling the pavilions?  

Application to Building Control  and Planning submitted for 

demolition of pavilions. 

What was happening to the gates for the play area? Fran asked 

members to let her know the views of members as to wether they 

should be replaced or not. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



Central Park Disabled Toilets  

Work completed last week. 

Report available from Nigel Hall 

 

Comments by BTAC Members 

Councillor Stevens: Leak needs repair behind the disabled toilet. 

Toilet cleaning is not to standard and needs addressing. 

 

Central Park Toilets 

Comments by BTAC Members 

Councillor Stevens: Toilet cleaning is not to standard and needs 

addressing. 

Councillor Woodliffe: Could the toilets be free?  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



Shelton’s Field 

            

      Stay and Play Unit                                        Multi Play Unit                           

 

             

 

 

                       Springer                                                Slide                 

 

Work completed Total Cost £18,440.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



BURGESS PIT 

 

Installation of Outdoor Gym Equipment and Trim Trail 

  

 

 

Work completed - Total Cost £20,000 

Comments by BTAC Members 

Councillor Stevens: Gave Fran a crime number 127- 27/07 re: the 

Teen Shelter Roof vandalism and requested it was followed up 

through CCTV and the Police. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



St John’s Park 

Installation of New Equipment 

                          

Musical Pipes                                  Gym Equipment 

            

Trim Trail                                                       Manipulative Play Panel 

   Goal Posts      

 

                                             Total Cost £24,665 

 

Page 27



Comments by BTAC Members 

Councillor Griggs: 

Surfacing under roundabout needs repair or the surfacing removed 

and replaced by grass matting. 

The new manipulative play panel was hard to turn and needs 

loosening off. 

Councillor Stevens and Councillor Rush were concerned at the 

amount of litter and general rubbish especially around the skate 

park. 

Play Area equipment could do with being painted. 

  

Page 28



Garfits Lane 

 

                                          Multi Use Games Area      

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

Total Cost through Section 106 funding £73,050 

Comments from BTAC Members 

Councillor Stevens and Rush: asked what was happening to the 

changing room building. Matt Fisher replied to this question. 

  

Page 29



Broadfield Lane 

 

New play area through Section 106 funding. 

 

          

           Basketball End Play Area 

 

 

          

  Play Area                            Outdoor Gym Equipment 

 

Comments by BTAC Members: 

Councillor Stevens : Could some trees be planted - Oak 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



Woodville Road  

 

Pirate Ship installation 

Tender sent out returns due by 03/09/19 

 

 

Page 31



 

   Secured funding: 

 £19,000 Boston Big Local 

£14,000 BTAC – agreed 

Comments from BTAC Members 

Councillor Rush: Requested that Fran send him the report when the 

Pirate Ship installation was agreed by Members.  

Councillor Rush and Councillor Griggs: Could the gym equipment be 

moved nearer to the play area? 

NB – Tender been awarded now to Kompan 

Play equipment needs painting. 

 

 

Page 32



 

  Lincoln Lane Toilets  

Work scheduled to start early October. See report by Nigel Hall. 

The toilets as of 1st October will come under properties and cleaning 

staff will be managed by Darren Bagley. 

Comments from BTAC Members 

Councillor Stevens: Toilet cleaning is not to standard and needs 

addressing. 

Play Area Signs 

All play areas have the new BTAC Play Area Signs 

Cost £960 

Need one for Broadfield Lane cost £100 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

Before and After CCTV Images

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

OPEN SPACES CONSULTATION 2019 

WISH LIST 

 St John’s  x 15 

 Central Park x 47 

 Garfits x 38 

 Shelton’s Field x 11 

 Broadfield Lane x 4 

 Woodville Road x 18 

 Burgess Pit x 17 

 Maple Road x 1 

St John’s 

Views 

 Play equipment quite old 

 OK 

 Goals great 

 Skate Park awful not fit to use – Need a new one that’s bigger 

 Litter needs picking up 

Health equipment 

 Brilliant  

 Love the trim trail 

 Good 

Improvements 

 Play House 

 Vehicle / Animal – (Sit in)  

 Springers 

 Zip wire 

Central Park 

Views 

 Love the green space 

 Too many drinkers 

 Beach and events amazing 

 Play area good for all ages 

 Disabled swing and roundabout brilliant 

 OK 

Page 41



 As long as children are happy I am happy 

 Please keep pavillions 

Health equipment 

 Gym equipment needs updating 

 Not good 

Improvements 

 Picnic Area 

 Water Splash Zone 

 Skate Park 

 MUGA 

 New gym equipment 

 Bandstand 

 Gate back on play area 

 Climbing wall 

 Community Area for Barbecues etc 

 5 a side football 

 More equipment for tiny tots 

 Re do Tennis Courts 

Garfit’s Lane 

Views 

 Lovely Play Area 

 MUGA brilliant 

 Nice area 

Health equipment 

 Would like to see some gym equipment like Burgess Pit 

 Not thought about it 

Improvements 

 Springers                               ) Tiny tots cannot access any equipment on their own 

 Vehicle / Animal (Sit in)      ) Tiny tots cannot access any equipment on their own 

 Teen Shelter 

 Goal Posts left up all the time 

Shelton’s Field 

Views 

 Lovely play area now new equipment in 

 Nice 

 Like it for my children it is peaceful here 

Page 42



Health equipment 

 Not interested 

 Not bothered 

Improvements 

 Trim Trail 

 

Broadfield Lane 

Views 

 Lovely new play area 

 Needs older equipment 

 Like the Orchard 

 Quiet 

 Nice for walking my dogs 

Health equipment 

 Good, haven’t used it but good for those who want to. 

Improvements 

 Play equipment for older children 

 Teen Shelter 

 Zip wire 

 Spider Net 

 Swings 

 High Slide 

 Goal Posts 

Woodville Road 

Views 

 Play equipment a bit dated 

 Well used we come here all the time 

 Needs painting 

Health Equipment 

 OK 

 Bit old 

Improvements 

 Zip Wire 

 Equipment painted 

Page 43



 Spider Climbing Net 

 Monkey Sticks 

Burgess Pit 

Views 

 Nice for young children 

 Gym and Trim trail good for older children and adults 

 Orchard messy 

 Good 

Health Equipment 

 Brilliant 

 Really good 

Improvements 

 Equipment for older children -Zip wire 

 Roundabout 

 Higher Slide 

 Roof back on Teen Shelter 

 

Maple Road 

 Needs to become an inviting play space nothing on it !!!! 

 

Other comments 

 Painting on all play areas where necessary 

 Grass on sites could do with being cut more 

 

Page 44



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

DATE: 2 OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT: 
 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

BTAC REPORT: REVIEW OF 2019/20 EVENTS AND  

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2020/21 EVENTS PROGRAMME 

HEAD OF PLACE AND SPACE 

EXEMPT REPORT: No 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
The BTAC budget incorporates a variety of services for the residents of Boston 
including the delivery of an events programme, throughout the financial year.  
 
This report provides an update on the 2019/20 programme for the Committee to note 
and options for a planned events programme for the 2020/21 financial year.  The 
report includes budgeted financial breakdowns covering both financial years, to 
support the Committee in its deliberations. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That this committee: 
 

i) Notes the outcomes of the 2019/20 events programme. 
ii) Considers a one year planned programme of events for 2020/21 to provide 

evidence to inform future years. 
iii) Considers the planned programme of events as detailed in the report for 

the 2020/21 financial year with an increased budget of £27,000 to support 
the delivery, if option one is preferred, or an increase in budget by £12,000, 
if option two is preferred or no increase in the budget if option three is 
preferred. 

iv) Recommends to Cabinet if recommendations (ii) and/or (iii), being over 
£10k is determined. 
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To ensure the necessary timescales needed for the planning and development of an 
events programme for 2020/21 within the Borough, approval of a programme, is 
sought at this early stage. 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 4



 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

 To limit the events programme to existing budgets. 

 To stop delivering events. 
 

 

REPORT:  

 
1.0  Introduction 
 
1.1 The BTAC budget incorporates a number of services for the residents of 

Boston including event delivery.  
 
 
2.0 Event Delivery 2019/20 Financial Year 
 
2.1      BTAC last received a report on events at its 20 March 2019 meeting where 

Members agreed the events programme for the 2019/20 financial year.  The 
summer events season has again resulted in a second successful calendar of 
programmed events, following the additional funding allocated by BTAC in 
2017.   

 
2.2 The Events Team consists of 1.5 Full Time Equivalents (FTE’s), and in the 

delivery of the current events programme is working at full capacity. To deliver 
additional events safely going forward would require additional resources. 

 
2.3      BTAC policy set in 2017/18 determined that the events programme for the 

2019/20 financial year be focused on BTAC residents and the corresponding 
programme to date has generally comprised of a mix of community-based 
events that provide families with opportunities that may not otherwise be easily 
affordable.     

 
2.4 The Events Programme as presented to the March 2019 BTAC meeting is 

appended, for reference (Appendix A). 
 
2.5      Boston Big Local (BBL) continues to be a key supporter of events for Boston 

residents and its funding has enabled additional community based events 
during the 2019/20 financial year.  BBL finalised a two-year plan in April 2019 
agreeing to fund 1940s event, Get Cycling Roadshow, Active Boston, Beach 
Days and some additional beach focus sessions for the 2019 and 2020 
calendar years. This total value of this funding over the two years is £42k.  

 
2.6 The Christmas Market & Lights Switch event each November has also 

received external funding through the Controlling Migration fund for the 
2018/19 and 2019/20 financial years.  This funding is not available for the 
2020/21 financial year.   

 

Page 46



2.7 During the 2019/20 financial year to date, the Events Team and the Safety 
Advisory Group  have also provided advice and support to a number of 
events within Boston that are run by external providers. This support has 
enabled additional events within the calendar for residents to enjoy and 
income associated with hire to the BTAC budget.  This approach provides a 
more varied programme for BTAC residents to enjoy and draws more visitors 
to the town. These events included: 
 

 The Boston Bike Night 

 Central Park Fun Fair 

 A Classic Car show 

 The Emerge Festival 
 

 

3. Options for 2020/21 Financial Year 
 
3.1 Members of BTAC at its 20 March 2019 suggested that going forward; the 

Committee should now try to take steps to hold major events in Boston that 
attract people from further afield. It was also reported that the current capacity 
within the Events Team was sufficient to deliver the 2019/20 programme; 
however, any ambition to expand the events programme further was likely to 
require additional resource or a reduction elsewhere in the programme.  
Outlined below are three options for delivering an events programme during 
the 2020/21 financial year as a single year pilot to test the way forward in 
developing more larger scale events, within a manageable programme.  One 
event, the Christmas Market & Lights Switch on event has been developed 
and recently fully funded through the Controlling Migration Fund programme, 
which comes to an end this financial year.  This event will add cost to the 
programme going forward and if the current BTAC budget was to be 
maintained the programme would have to be reduced for the 2020/21 financial 
year. 

 
3.2 Option One incorporates some larger scale events in addition to the existing 

community based events.  This option aims to keep all the free community 
events, which people have enjoyed this year but adds/combines some of the 
existing larger scale events, some of which would have or could have a 
charge on entry.  A major cost for the 2020/21 budget is the return of the 
Christmas Market & Lights Switch on event (not including the provision of 
lights) within the budget, which has recently been funded through Controlling 
Migration Funding.  Option one, would cost BTAC an additional £27,000 for 
the 2020/21 financial year and a detailed breakdown of this programme is 
appended (Appendix B). 

 
3.3 Option Two focuses on larger scale events within the BTAC funded events 

programme with a more limited programme of smaller scale community 
focussed events delivered principally through the BBL funding stream. This 
option could be delivered with an additional £12,000 for the 2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

Page 47



3.4 Option Three retains the existing BTAC budget at £41,500 and the programme 
is reduced to retain current spending as shown in Appendix D, again this 
option focuses on larger scale events within the BTAC funded event 
programme, and a limited programme of smaller scale event sfunded entirely 
through the BBL funding.   

 
3.5 Two events identified within all options have already been committed to for 

2020; this is due to the need to book artists/performers/groups nearly one year 
in advance. Should the committee wish to not continue with the these events 
for 2021, then a further report would be prepared for BTAC at a later meeting 
in preparation of the 2021/22 programme. These two events are:  
 

 A Teenage Market in partnership with Bishop Grosseteste University. 

 A Through the Ages event. 
 

3.6 The events team currently seeks sponsorships through networking events and 
meetings where it is feasible to do so within existing resources. To continue to 
support the BTAC programme, a Member Working Group may wish to seek 
additional sponsorship for events, in order to offset the BTAC expenditure 
budget.  Major sponsors could support the following events: 

 Outdoor Cinema, should option one be agreed. 

 Boston Show including ‘Through the Ages’  

 Party in the Park  

Potential further sponsorship details and options to generate an income are 

appended for a future BTAC working group to debate and consider (Appendix 

E). 

 
4.0  Prosperity of the town 
 
4.1 The Events programme has led to wider benefits to the wider Town Centre 
 with businesses seeing an increase in their footfall whilst events are being 
 held, and businesses are starting to support the development of the events 
 programme through sponsorship and advertising.  

 
4.2 The positive comments and photographs from the Events held over the last 

year can be found in Appendix B. Comments from members of the public are 
periodically reported to Cabinet as part of the Council’s quarterly monitoring of 
performance reporting. The success of day long events where people cannot 
be contained and where visitors are free to access and leave the event a 
number of ways at any time, are however harder to evaluate. 

 
4.3 Statistical analysis of the Council’s social media platforms has continued to 

show increasing awareness of the BTAC events programme, the data below 
from our Facebook page, ‘Visit Boston UK’ events page activity, provides an 
overview. Whilst our actual following is less than 2,000 you will see we have a 
large engagement: (last 365 days as of 28

th
 August 2019) 

 

Page 48



 
What does this mean? 

 Events – number of events hosted included Co-hosts; NB in January 2019 we started to add 
as many local events to the Visit Boston Facebook page to try and make the page more attractive to a 
wider audience. 
 

 People reached – number of people who had info about your events enter their screen (NB this 

does not mean they have read or engaged) 

 

 Event responses – Total number of people who responded with Interested or Going to your 
events (NB this does mean they are engaging) 
 

 Ticket clicks – The total number of click on the link to tickets for your event 

 
4.3 An overview of whole page for the dates below: 
 

 14th – 20th Feb  16th July – 22nd July  12th Aug – 18th Aug 

Post Engagements 1,922 2,245 3,849 

Page Views 116 199 272 

Post Reach 14,985 16,275 16,646 

 
 Post engagements– the number of times that people have engaged with your posts 

through likes, comments, shares and more. 

 Page views – the number of times that the page’s profile has been viewed by people. 

 Post reach - the number of people who had information from our posts enter their 
page, as above; NB this does not mean they have read or engaged. 

 
5    Conclusion 

 
5.1     Following the increase in the number and breadth of the programme, Boston is 

developing into a town more noted for its events; with a wide mix of family 
oriented and more commercially focused events.  It appears that local people 
are starting to stay within town to find activities and more visitors are also 
starting to travel from further afield to Boston for events (as previously 
reported). 

 
5.2 The Events Team will continue to establish new relationships with businesses 

to create further sponsorship opportunities, where feasible, to support the 

Page 49



costs of running events where feasible. Support from a Member Working 
Group could also enhance this work towards securing sponsorship. 

 
5.3 The current capacity within the Events Team is sufficient to deliver the 

2020/21 programme.  However, any ambition to further expand the events 
programme in the future will require additional resource in order to ensure it is 
delivered safely. This also includes additional requests from external parties 
wishing to hold events on Borough Council land. The 20/21 programme is 
considered manageable due to only one new event being combined with an 
existing Through the Ages event in the calendar (Boston Show).  

 
5.4 Request that BTAC continue to support the Events programme and Members 

consider the options to increase the budget to allow continued delivery of the 
programme. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The 2019/20 Events budget outline is appended (Appendix A). 
 
The proposed 2020/2021 events budget outlined, is currently showing a shortfall of 
£27,000 (Appendix B) 
 
The proposed 2020/2021 events budget outlined, is currently showing a shortfall of 
£12,000 (Appendix C) 
 
Should additional resources be considered appropriate for the 2020/21 programme, it 
is proposed that these be funded from existing unallocated reserve. 
 

 
 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council is required to conform to the requirements of the EU Procurement 
Directive and its own Contract Procurement and Procedure Rules Part 4 (H) of the 
Constitution. 
 
The Council uses its powers to encourage tourism within the Borough through the 
Local Government Act 1972, section 144. 
 
There are no equality implications within this report, any equality implications arising 
from an individual event are identified and managed through individual event planning 
processes and risk assessment.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 
 
CONSULTATION 
 

 Members of the public at events 

 Retailers forum meetings and working with Boston Town Team 

 Businesses who are supporting our events 

 Portfolio Holder for Events 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A – Events Budget 2019/20 
Appendix B – Option 1 Proposed Events Budget 2020/2021 
Appendix C – Option 2 Proposed Events Budget 2020/2021 
Appendix D – Option 3 Proposed Events Budget 2020/2021 
Appendix E – Sponsorship Support 
 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report. 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

None. 
 
 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A -  Current Budget - 2019/20

2019-2020
Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Actual outgoings Actual Income Projected income

April

Friday 26th April
Outdoor Cinema - The
Greatest Showman

Supported by Chattertons -
Commerical Event 2,200.00£ 1,627.17£ 2,011.23£ 2,000.00£

May-19

Fri 17th May - Fri 31st
May

Love Your Local
Market campaign Events around the Market Place 2,000.00£ 1,899.37£ -£ -£

Thurs 30th May

Craft Market and
Dementia Awareness
Day 1,250.00£ 1,013.58£ -£ -£

Jun-19

Sat 1st June Childrens Day 1,000.00£ 1,443.20£ -£ -£

Wed 19th and Thurs
20th June Lincolnshire Show

Promo for events and Visit
Boston UK 500.00£ 2,219.41£ -£ -£

Fri 21st - Sun 23rd June 1940's Event BBL part funded 2,500.00£ 4,151.92£ 405.15£ -£

Jul-19

Sat 6th & Sun 7th July Through the Ages
Long term potential
commercial event 6,000.00£ 7,157.12£ -£ 500.00£

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 53



Appendix A -  Current Budget - 2019/20

Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Actual outgoings
Actual Income to
date Projected income

Friday 26th July Get Cycling Roadshow
BBL funded and BBC green
budget -£ -£ -£ BBL Grant £1,500

Wed 31st July
Promo day and street
theatre* Market Place 750.00£ 390.00£ -£ -£

Aug-19

Thursday 1st August
Craft Market and
classic cars 145.00£ -£ -£ -£

Sat 3rd August Teddy Bears Picnic
Supported by Oldrids &
Downtown 2,000.00£ 1,232.92£ 590.00£ 1,000.00£

Various August Dates Focused Beach sessions BBL funded -£ -£ -£ -£

Wed 7th August
Messy Hands and Feet
Painting 225.00£ 225.00£ 50.00£ -£

Friday 9th August Active Boston** BBL funded -£ 1,000.00£ -£ BBL Grant £5,000

Wed 14th August Fairy Door Hunt MOVED INTO GUILDHALL 300.00£ 235.00£ 112.00£ 300.00£

Thurs 15th & Fri 16th
August Beach Event BBL funded -£ -£ BBL Grant £8,500

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 54



Appendix A -  Current Budget - 2019/20

Date of Event Event Comments Outgoings Actual outgoings
Actual Income to
date Projected income

Wednesday 21st August Pirate Gold Digging

Teamed up with Butterfly
Hospice to do a pirate &
princess day including Mini
Marathon 300.00£ 300.00£ 50.00£ -£

Sunday 25th August Music and Beer Festival Central Park - Commercial Event 10,000.00£ 11,476.82£ 5,111.93£ 4,500.00£
Predicted from here Predicted from here

Sep-19

Fri 20th and Sat 21st
September Outdoor Cinema Event*

Supported by Chattertons -
commercial event 4,000.00£ 2,548.45£ 956.00£ 4,000.00£

Nov/Dec
Xmas Window
Competition 5 prizes @ £80 400.00£ -£ -£ -£

Thurs 21st November
Christmas Market and
Illuminate Parade*

Funded by £17,500 from CMF
Grant frunding 500.00£ -£ 1,215.00£ 2,000.00£

Dec-19

Comments Predicted Outgoings Actual outgoings
Actual Income to
date Projected income

Thursday's in December
Craft and Gift Markets
with Entertainment

Funded by £4,000 from CMF
grant funding -£ -£ -£ -£

Sun 15th December
Festive Market & Santa
Fun Run*

Funded by £5,500 from CMF
grant funding 500.00£ -£ -£ 700.00£

Sunday 29th March Celebration of Farming 1,500.00£ -£ -£ 200.00£

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 55



Appendix A -  Current Budget - 2019/20

Predicted Outgoings Actual outgoings
Actual Income to
date Projected income

36,070.00£ 36,919.96£ 10,501.31£ 15,000.00£
General Spend 5,093.27£ 5,093.27£

Total 41,163.27£ 42,013.23£ 18,841.31£ 23,340.00£
Budget Income target 14,000.00£

1,063.27-£ 1,913.23-£ 4,841.31£

8,340.00£

Saturday 6th April 2019 Emerge Festival Mighty Creatives Went ahead 170.00£

Thurs 4th July 2019 Boston Bike Night Went ahead 170.00£

27th July - 4th August
2019 Fun Fair in the Park Eventive Fun Time Went ahead 8,000.00£

Commercial Event - either made money or looking to develop into a money making event

£40,100

Income from external events

**Active Boston has been postponed and rearranged for Sun 22nd Sept

£8,340.00

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 56



Appendix B - Option 1 budget - 2020/21

2020
Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Projected Income

Apr-20

Saturday 25th April
Outdoor Cinema - Mamma Mia
evening

Will need to approach Chattertons to see if
will sponsor again 2,000.00£ 3,000.00£

May-20

Fri 17th May - Fri 31st May Love Your Local Market campaign 500.00£ -£

Jun-20 -£ -£

Sat 13th and Sun 14th June
1940s Two day event and
Entertainment in the Market Place

£6,000 is put in by BBL and the income in
spilt into a BBL pot and income for BTAC 2,500.00£ 400.00£

Jul-20

Sat 4th July Teenage Market
Working with Lincoln University, committed
for 2020 1,000.00£ -£

Sat 4th and Sun 5th July
Boston Show including Through The
Ages

Committed for 2020 with Through the ages,
cancel from 2021 if don't want to do to 18,000.00£ 1,000.00£

Friday 24th July Get Cycling Roadshow Funded by BBL -£ -£

Aug-20
Beach in Situ

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 57



Appendix B - Option 1 budget - 2020/21

Friday 7th August Active Boston -£ -£

Wednesday 5th, 12th, 19th August Childrens Free activities

Something like Messy Hand and Feet
painting, Crafts Sessions, free things for kids
to enjoy in the Park 1,000.00£ 150.00£

Thurs 13th & Fri 14th August Beach Event
Funded by BBL, including deckchairs and
addditional focus beach sessions -£ -£

Saturday 22nd August Party in the Park Central Park 12,000.00£ 5,000.00£

Sep-20

Fri 19th September Outdoor Cinema Event
Will need to approach Chattertons to see if
will sponsor again 2,000.00£ 3,000.00£

Nov-20

Thurs 26th November
Christmas Market/Lights Switch on
and Illuminate Parade 14,500.00£ 3,000.00£

Dec-20

Sun 15th December Festive Market & Santa Fun Run
Santa Fun Run organised and paid for by
Boston Community Runners 6,500.00£ 500.00£

External event income projected

£ 60,000.00 £ 16,050.00
*General spend is bits that are used for all events, toilets, cables, kit, *General Spend £ 6,500.00 £ 8,170.00
safety matting, BTAC operatives
ovetime payments Total £ 66,500.00

Budget £ 40,100.00 £14,000

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

Compare to Budget 26,400.00-£ 10,220.00£

P
age 58



Page 1 Appendix C - Option 2 budget - 2020/21

2020
Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Projected Income

Jun-20 -£ -£

Sat 13th and Sun 14th June
1940s Two day event and
Entertainment in the Market Place

£6,000 is put in by BBL and the income in
spilt into a BBL pot and income for BTAC -£ -£

Jul-20

Sat 4th July Teenage Market
Working with Lincoln University, committed
for 2020 1,000.00£ -£

Sat 4th and Sun 5th July
Boston Show including Through The
Ages

Committed for 2020 with Through the ages,
cancel from 2021 if don't want to do to 18,000.00£ 1,000.00£

Friday 24th July Get Cycling Roadshow Funded by BBL -£ -£

Aug-20
Beach in Situ Funded by BBL

Friday 7th August Active Boston -£ -£

Thurs 13th & Fri 14th August Beach Event
Funded by BBL, including deckchairs and
addditional focus beach sessions -£ -£

Saturday 22nd August Party in the Park Central Park 12,000.00£ 4,000.00£

Nov-20

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 59



Page 2 Appendix C - Option 2 budget - 2020/21

Thurs 26th November
Christmas Market/Lights Switch on
and Illuminate Parade 14,500.00£ 3,000.00£

Outdoor Cinema Nights
Hold a minimum of 2 outdoor cinema nights, looking to cover costs but £2.5k for financial security 2,500.00£ 2,500.00£

Free Family Fun - (messy hands and feet painting/pirate gold digging/arts & crafts)
If secure sponsorship for other events and have money available to put on Summer activities -£ -£

External event income projected
48,000.00£ 10,500.00£

*General spend is bits that are used for all events, toilets, cables, kit, *General Spend 4,000.00£ 8,170.00£
safety matting, BTAC operatives
ovetime payments Total 52,000.00£

Budget 40,100.00£ £14,000
Compare to Budget 11,900.00-£ 4,670.00£

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 60



Appendix D - Option 3 budget - 2020/21

2020
Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Projected Income

Jun-20 -£ -£

Sat 13th and Sun 14th June
1940s Two day event and
Entertainment in the Market Place

£6,000 is put in by BBL and the income in
spilt into a BBL pot and income for BTAC -£ -£

Jul-20

Sat 4th July Teenage Market
Working with Lincoln University, committed
for 2020 1,000.00£ -£

Sat 4th and Sun 5th July Through the Ages
Committed for 2020 with Through the ages,
cancel from 2021 if don't want to do to 8,000.00£ 500.00£

Friday 24th July Get Cycling Roadshow Funded by BBL -£ -£

Aug-20
Beach in Situ

Friday 7th August Active Boston -£ -£

Thurs 13th & Fri 14th August Beach Event
Funded by BBL, including deckchairs and
addditional focus beach sessions -£ -£

Saturday 22nd August Party in the Park Central Park 11,800.00£ 5,000.00£

Nov-20

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 61



Appendix D - Option 3 budget - 2020/21

Thurs 26th November
Christmas Market/Lights Switch on
and Illuminate Parade 12,800.00£ 3,000.00£

External event income projected
33,600.00£ 8,500.00£

*General spend is bits that are used for all events, toilets, cables, kit, *General Spend 6,500.00£ 8,170.00£
safety matting, BTAC operatives
ovetime payments Total 40,100.00£

Budget 40,100.00£ £14,000
Compare to Budget -£ 2,670.00£

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 62



Appendix E – Sponsorship Support – 2020/21  
 

Sponsorship Support 

1.0 Introduction 

The events team currently seeks sponsorships through networking events and 

meetings where it is feasible to do so within existing resources. To continue to 

support the BTAC programme, a Member Working Group may wish to seek 

additional sponsorship for events, in order to offset the BTAC expenditure  budget 

where successful. 

Major sponsors could support the following events: 

 Outdoor Cinema – Officers will approach Chatterton’s again following their 

long-term support with these events, should option 1 be agreed. 

 Boston Show including ‘Through the Ages’  

 Party in the Park  

Other sponsorship options for events such as those listed above are detailed within 

5.0 of this appendix. 

 

2.0 Outdoor Cinema Screen Adverts 

The outdoor cinema event provides an opportunity for businesses to have their logo 

or a small business advert to be played before the start of the film. The screen is 

able to show a promotional video or display your logo before the film starts.  

Logos will be on the screen on a constant loop before the film starts, this is available 

for £30 or; you can have a short clip, advert, rolling images and text, no longer than 

45 secs which can be played priced at £75. 

Entertainment before film starts: £300: Such as close up magic, a character for meet 

and greet 

Gifts for children to take away: £3 per child: Organisers try to tie in with film and give 

children a gift as they leave as agreed with sponsor 

 

3.0 Free activities for kids - fun additions 

 Children crafts activities to an event. This really does draw in a crowd, and we 

are not sure if more adults end up involved than the kids but a great 

opportunity to get your name seen. 

 Face painting – allows people to have free face painting or glitter tattoos, 

always really well received and proves very popular. 

 Stilt Walkers – these could wear you company logo/uniform, everyone always 

wants a photograph. 

Page 63



Appendix E – Sponsorship Support – 2020/21  
 

For any of the above, we will provide you a minimum of two mentions on our social 

media platforms (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram) thanking your business for the 

support, and the option to have the stand decorated with your company logo/banners 

displayed or the option to have your own stand on site. Please contact us for prices 

as they all vary due to times at different events. 

Available at: 

 1940s event 

 Outdoor Cinema Events 

 Summer Children Events 

 Christmas Market 

 Festive Market 

 

4.0 Boston Show incl. Through the Ages, Sat 4th July and Sun 5th July 2020, 

10.30am – 4pm daily 

Combined with the ‘Through the Ages’ event an opportunity to develop a Boston 

Show. This event would be free to attend.  

Outline initial plan is to have the ‘Through the Ages’ groups down one side of the 

Park with a medieval market; on the opposite side would be a trade area, community 

area and food court. Trade area would pay to attend. 

In the middle will be an arena, which will host battles from the Through the Ages 

groups, dance performances, wild bird display, etc. 

Infrastructure options – where a business could supply from their company to 

support the event (must have all relevant paperwork/insurance/risk assessments/etc) 

 Lighting towers 

 Large powered generators, quiet as possible 

 Bottled water 

 Marquee 

 

5.0 Party in the Park, Sat 22nd August 2020, 1pm – 10pm 

The outline concept of Party in the Park is to charge an entry fee to adults but all 

activities inside will be free for families to enjoy. We could look for one big sponsor 

but actually this event could work really well by lots of sponsors supporting a bit of 

the event each. 

Sponsorship could include mentions on social media, our website, a free ticket, 

mentions by stage hosts throughout the day, flyers that are printed for the event can 

advertise event on one side and list of activities and sponsored by on the back. 

Option to allow sponsors to bring their own gazebo to event for them to enjoy event? 

Page 64



Appendix E – Sponsorship Support – 2020/21  
 

BTAC to print banners for entrance with list of activities on with sponsored by XXX, 

these could also be up a week before. 

This is not an exhaustive list, other ideas are been looked into and could be offered 

as options. 

Free Ice Cream for first 50 
people 

£150 Vouchers handed to the first 50 people through 
the gates receive a free ice cream, voucher has 
sponsor details on 

Crafts area £200 Sponsors can have information within the craft 
area 

Shoot the hoops (1pm – 8pm) £250 Shoot as many hoops into Basketball hoop as 
can in allowed time. Prizes for those who take 
part. 

Face painting/Glitter Tattoos 
(1pm – 8.30pm) 

£275 Pop up where this takes place can be livered up 
with sponsors information 

Wristbands £275 Company name on, everyone at event receives 
one 

Bouncy castle/soft play/outdoor 
games (1pm – 8.30pm) 

£500 Sponsors can have banners side of the area 

Adult ball pool £500 Sponsors can have banners at side of area 

Circus workshop  (1pm – 6pm) £550 Entrance to circus workshop could have 
sponsored by XXX 

Crazy Golf course £600 Score cards could be produced with sponsors 
logo on 

Fireworks (9pm) £950 A short firework display as last band are 
performing, stage host to announce supported 
by XXX 

Toilets £1,000 Sponsored by posters on doors (inside and out) 

Silent Disco (3pm – 10pm) £1,000 Banner’s could be put within the disco marquee 
and on the outside 

Stage £3,000 May have a company already interested in this 
but options include branding on the stage, side 
of the stage. 

 

*Please note these are all projected figures or based and banners are to be provided 

by sponsor, we could printed get at an extra charge 

Infrastructure options – where a business could supply from their company to 

support the event (must have all relevant paperwork/insurance/risk assessments/etc) 

 Lighting towers 

 Large powered generators, quiet as possible 

 Heras fencing 

 Bottled water 

 marquee 

A Member Working Group would also have the opportunity to develop further ideas 

for sponsorship streams. 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO:                    BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE:                                2nd OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT:                         UPDATE ON BTAC OPERATIVES ACTIVITY 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Members review and comment on the information presented in the 
report. 
 

 
 

 
REASON FOR REPORT  
 
To update Members on the work undertaken by the BTAC Operatives. 
 
 

 

REPORT 
 
The BTAC Operatives consists of one post jointly funded with the Borough 
(30% contribution from BTAC) and two posts entirely funded by BTAC. 
 
Through the Service Level Agreement with Boston Big Local (BBL) some 
funding has been provided to tackle cigarette litter and Chewing Gum, using 
the Chewing Gum removal machine and the Street Vacuum within the BBL 
area. 
 
From April 2019 one member of the team has been off ill, he has now 
undergone surgery and is expected to return to work on the 16TH September 
2019. 
 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5



 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Dealing with Vandalism and Graffiti 
 
The operatives have dealt with a number of jobs relating to vandalism these 
include:-  Central Park fencing (broken twice in the last month), broken bins, 
burnt out bins (2), seating and tables set on fire in Witham Way Country Park. 
 
They have also dealt with 15 incidences of Graffiti.     
 
Assisting with events  
 

Pirate and Princess Day 

Music Festival 

Craft Market set up (every Thursday) 

Outdoor Cinema 

Active Boston 

New bin installation and refurbishment programme 
 

 A further 20 new bins with ashtrays for cigarette ends have been 
installed around Ingram Memorial, Church Close, Carlton  
Road, High Street, Lister Way, Emery Lane and at the side of the 
Salvation Army since the beginning of August.   

 

 Refurbished (rubbed down, repaired, undercoated and top coated) a 
further 6 Cast Iron Bins. Most of these have been installed along 
Witham Bank and 2 in areas where there has previously been plastic 
bins that have been repeatedly vandalised or broken. 
 

 There are still seven cast bins left that are still waiting to be restored. 
 
Weed spraying  
      
           The operatives have continued with the weed spraying programme at:- 

 Lawrence Lane 

 Stonebow Lane 

 Emery Lane 

 Town Bridge 

 Rosegarth Street 

 West Street 

 St Georges Road 

 Wide Bargate 
 
 
 

Page 68



      
Ongoing Public Realm Improvement Projects 
 

 The operatives continue to be involved in a number of Boston in Bloom 
horticultural projects including B&M Site, Urban Meadow, Doughty 
Quay and Crown House Footpath. 

 

 Removing detritus and weeds from various locations including Crown 
House Footpath Area, Bus Station, Town Centre, Cattle Market, and 
some car parks. 

 

 Chewing Gum removal Town Bridge, Emery Lane and some areas on 
West Street. 

 

 Street vacuuming targeting cigarette ends specifically 
  

Reactive Maintenance   
 

 Fence, seating and bin repairs 

 Brickwork repairs Witham Way Country Park 

 Replace/refit uneven paving slabs (various locations) 

 Repairing/replacing metal bollards At Wide Bargate 
 
 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
None – Report for information only 
 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None – Report for information only 
 
 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None – Report for information only 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None – Report for information only 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken. 
 

 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX 1 Examples of the work completed 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government 
Act 1972 were used in the production of this report.  
 

 

 
CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council  
 

 

Page 70



Examples of the work done by the Town Area

Operatives (August/September 2019)

Appendix 1

P
age 71



P
age 72



P
age 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 

 
  

MEETING AGENDA ITEM 
 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
   

12 JUNE 2019  Appointment of Chairman 

 Appointment of Vice-Chairman 

 BTAC 2018/19 Financial Position Update 

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives  

 Draft Annual BTAC Report  

Clerk 
Chairman  

Tim Sampson 
Phil Perry  

“ 
    

21ST AUG 2019  BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

Tim Sampson 
Phil Perry 

    

2ND OCT 2019  Locking Central Park Gates (possibly November) 

 BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 BTAC Small Grants Scheme – Applications  

 Events Review 

 The Committee’s Tour of Assets 

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

Phil Perry 
Tim Sampson 
Maddy Eyre 
Phil Perry 

Matt Fisher 
Phil Perry 

    

27TH NOV 2019  BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 BTAC Small Grants Scheme – Applications  

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

 Alternative sites for the speed indicating device (SID) 

 Report on an upgrade of Fenside (possibly January) 

Tim Sampson 
Maddy Eyre 
Phil Perry 

    

29TH JAN 2020  BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update  

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

Tim Sampson 
Phil Perry 

    

25TH MAR 2020  BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 BTAC Small Grants Scheme – Applications  

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

Tim Sampson 
Maddy Eyre 
Phil Perry 

   

 
  

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 6



 
 
 

FUTURE MEETINGS: 
        

 Invitation to Road Safety Partnership to attend regarding speed indicating devices  

 Interactive Notice Boards  

 Community hub on London Road, its use and its future 

 Update on upgrade of CCTV cameras in Central Park 

 Play Area Improvements ‘Wish List’ 
 

 

P
age 78


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019
	Appendix 1 - Summary of BTAC budget and projected outturn position for 2019-20, and reserve position as at 31 March 2020

	2 BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME
	3 BTAC ASSETS- TOUR OF OPEN SPACES
	Appendix A- Play Areas and Open Green Spaces
	Appendix B- Before and After CCTV Images
	Appendix C- Open Spaces Consultation 2019

	4 REVIEW OF 2019/20 EVENTS AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2020/21 EVENTS PROGRAMME
	Appendix A - Events Budget 2019/20
	Appendix B - Option 1 Proposed Events Budget 2020/21
	Appendix C - Option 2 Proposed Events Budget 2020/21
	Appendix D - Option 3 Proposed Events Budget 2020/21
	Appendix E - Sponsorship Support

	5 UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES ACTIVITY
	Examples of the Work Completed - Sept 2019

	6 WORK PROGRAMME

